1997

## Zions First National Bank and 4447 Associates v. First Security Financial : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

### JURISDICTION

This Court has jurisdiction over this appeal pursuant to Utah Code Annotated Section 78-2a-3(2)(j) (1996).

### ISSUES

There are three issues before the Court:

I. Did the district court err in holding that Utah Code Annotated Section 70A-9-318(3), as interpreted by the Utah Supreme Court in America First Credit Union v. First Sec. Bank, 930 P.2d 1198 (Utah 1997), does not apply to this case?<sup>1</sup> Because this is a legal issue, the standard of review is de novo, and this Court reviews the decision of the district court for correctness. Kennecott Copper Co. v. Salt Lake County, 799 P.2d 1156 (Utah 1990).

II. Did the district court err in holding that Utah Code Annotated Section 70A-9-318(2) does not entitle First Security to judgment in its favor.<sup>2</sup> This is a legal issue, and the standard of review is de novo. Id.

III. Did the district court err in awarding attorney's fees to 4447 Associates when the dispute between the parties did not "arise under" the original contract but centered around whether

---

<sup>1</sup>This issue was raised in First Security's Motion for Entry of Judgment in Favor of First Security, R. 2245-62.

<sup>2</sup>This issue was raised in First Security's Memorandum in Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment, R. 1871-78.

First Security had received notice of an assignment of the contract?<sup>3</sup> The standard of review is de novo. Id.

**DETERMINATIVE STATUTES, RULES, AND REGULATIONS**

This case is governed by Utah Code Annotated Section 70A-9-318 (1990), which provides:

(1) Unless an account debtor has made an enforceable agreement not to assert defenses or claims arising out of a sale as provided in Section 70A-9-206 the rights of an assignee are subject to:

(a) all the terms of the contract between the account debtor and assignor and any defense or claim arising therefrom; and

(b) any other defense or claim of the account debtor against the assignor which accrues before the account debtor receives notification of the assignment.

(2) So far as the right to payment or a part thereof under an assigned contract has not been fully earned by performance, and notwithstanding notification of the assignment, any modification of or substitution for the contract made in good faith and in accordance with reasonable commercial standards is effective against an assignee unless the account debtor has otherwise agreed but the assignee acquires corresponding rights under the modified or substituted contract. The assignment may provide that such modification or substitution is a breach by the assignor.

(3) The account debtor is authorized to pay the assignor until the account debtor receives notification that the amount due or to become due has been assigned and that payment is to be made to the assignee. A notification which does not reasonably identify the rights assigned is ineffective. If requested by the account debtor, the assignee must seasonably furnish reasonable proof that the assignment has been made and unless he does so the account debtor may pay the assignor.

---

<sup>3</sup>This issue was originally raised in First Security's Memorandum in Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment, R. 1883-85.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

### Nature of the Case and Course of Proceedings.

This appeal involves a dispute between 4447 Associates and First Security Financial ("First Security") over whether First Security received proper notice that its debt to its original creditor had been assigned and that First Security should make payments to the assignee.

After trial, the district court held that the required notice had not been given and that First Security was therefore free to satisfy its debt through an agreement with the original creditor. R. 781. The district court entered judgment in favor of First Security, R. 783-84, and 4447 Associates appealed, R. 789-90. This Court reversed and held that notice of the assignment had been given. 889 P.2d 467. The case was then remanded to the district court. Id. Before the district court entered judgment in the case, the Utah Supreme Court issued its decision in America First. First Security then moved for judgment in its favor based upon the America First decision. R. 2245-46. First Security also argued on remand that it was allowed to modify the contract with Capitol pursuant to section 318(2). R. 1871-78. The district court denied First Security's motion, R. 2351-56, and entered judgment in favor of 4447 Associates, R. 2357-59. First Security then filed a timely notice of appeal. R. 2369-70.



**Statement of Facts.**

1. In 1982 First Security and Capitol Thrift & Loan Company ("Capitol") entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement whereby First Security acquired certain assets from Capitol and became obligated to make certain payments to Capitol. R. 776.

2. Disputes subsequently arose between First Security and Capitol. On July 10, 1985, the parties entered into a Settlement Agreement whereby Capitol settled its disputes with First Security and cancelled First Security's debt to Capitol under the Asset Purchase Agreement. R. 780.

3. Prior to settling with First Security, Capitol had assigned to Zions First National Bank ("Zions") its interest in the Asset Purchase Agreement as collateral for a loan that Capitol obtained from Zions. R. 777.

4. Zions, as assignee, filed suit against First Security to collect the debt that had been cancelled by Capitol. R. 2-39.

5. In June 1990, after filing suit, Zions assigned its interest in the Asset Purchase Agreement to the appellee, 4447 Associates. R. 780.

6. At trial before the Third District Court, the court held that 4447 Associates "failed to prove that First Security received sufficient notice of the assignment, as required by law," to preclude First Security from satisfying its debt with the original creditor, Capitol. R. 709.

7. 4447 Associates then filed an appeal, which was heard by this Court. 889 P.2d 467. The issue on that appeal was whether the district court had correctly determined that First Security did not receive adequate notice of the assignment from Capitol to Zions. Id. at 470. First Security argued that under section 70A-9-318(3), First Security had to receive notice of two things: (a) notice of the fact of the assignment, and (b) notice that First Security should make payments to Zions rather than Capitol. Id. at 472 n.8.

8. The court of appeals determined that First Security had received notice of the assignment through a footnote in a financial statement received by First Security. Id. at 474. The court of appeals also held that while First Security "clearly" had not received the dual notice required by section 318(3), id. at 470 n.5, as a legal matter, section 318(3) did not apply to its analysis. Id. at 472 n.8. The court of appeals reversed and remanded this case to the district court.

9. First Security then filed a petition for certiorari with the Utah Supreme Court seeking review of the decision of the court of appeals. The petition was denied without comment by the Utah Supreme Court. 899 P.2d 1231.

10. However, the supreme court granted a petition for certiorari in the similar case of America First Credit Union v. First Security Bank. 910 P.2d 425 (Utah 1995). First Security's

petition in America First specifically referred to this case and urged the supreme court to resolve the issue in both cases concerning the proper application of the dual notice requirement in section 70A-9-318(3). R. 2008.

11. While this case was on remand to the district court, and before judgment was entered, the Utah Supreme Court issued its decision in the America First case. 930 P.2d 1198 (Utah 1997). Based upon that decision, First Security moved for judgment in its favor. R. 2245-46. First Security argued that the district court was obligated to follow the law as announced by the supreme court in America First, which implicitly overruled portions of the decision of the court of appeals in this case. R. 2252-55.

12. The district court disagreed with 4447 Associates' argument that res judicata and law of the case prevented the district court from considering the America First decision. The court held: "The Court has the authority to consider and apply the Utah Supreme Court's decision in America First Credit Union v. First Security Bank of Utah." R. 2355. However, the district court ruled against First Security on the merits and entered

judgment in favor of 4447 Associates.<sup>4</sup> The court also awarded attorney's fees to 4447 Associates. R. 2357-58.

13. First Security then filed a timely notice of appeal from the judgment entered in favor of 4447 Associates. R. 2369-70.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

I. On remand the district court was required to apply the law as announced by the highest appellate court in the state. In America First, the Utah Supreme Court held that, even in cases where an account debt is fully satisfied, section 70A-9-318(3) requires notice not only that the account has been assigned but also that the debtor should make payments to the assignee. Because there is no dispute that the dual notice requirement of section 70A-9-318 was not satisfied in this case, the district court erred by not entering judgment in favor of First Security.

II. Section 318(2) provides that parties may modify executory contracts even when notice of an assignment has been provided. There is no dispute that the contract in this case was executory because a number of quarterly interest payments remained due. The district court therefore erred in holding that First Security was not entitled to judgment in its favor.

---

<sup>4</sup>The district court held: "Utah Code Annotated Section 70A-9-318(3) does not apply to this action pursuant to the decision of the Utah Court of Appeals." R. 2354. The district court did not state whether it believed that America First overruled the decision of the court of appeals. R. 2358.

III. In addition, the district court erred in awarding attorney's fees to 4447 Associates. The Asset Purchase Agreement between First Security and Capitol allows attorney's fees only for disputes "arising under" the Asset Purchase Agreement. The dispute between First Security and 4447 Associates did not involve any provision of the Asset Purchase Agreement or arise under it in any way. Rather, the dispute turned solely on whether First Security had received notice of an assignment of the Asset Purchase Agreement. This dispute is extraneous to the Asset Purchase Agreement and not contemplated by it. Therefore the district court erred in awarding attorney's fees to 4447 Associates.

#### **ARGUMENT**

**I. THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED ON REMAND BY HOLDING THAT SECTION 70A-9-318(3) DOES NOT APPLY TO THIS CASE.**

As an account debtor whose account obligation was assigned to a third party, First Security's rights and duties are governed by section 70A-9-318(3) of the Utah Code. That section provides:

(3) The account debtor is authorized to pay the assignor until the account debtor receives notification that the amount due or to become due has been assigned and that payment is to be made to the assignee. A notification which does not reasonably identify the rights assigned is ineffective. If requested by the account debtor, the assignee must seasonably furnish reasonable proof that the assignment has been made and unless he does so the account debtor may pay the assignor.

(Emphasis added.)

When this case was before this Court on the first appeal, this Court ruled that, as a matter of law, section 318(3) did not apply to its analysis, stating:

The two-pronged notice requirement mandated by Utah Code Ann. § 70A-9-318(3) (1990) is not applicable to our analysis. Section 9-318(3) sets forth the notice requirements for an assignee to receive payments directly from the account debtor. In the instant case, the question of whether Zions was entitled to receive payments from First Security as they became due does not merit consideration.

889 P.2d at 472 n.8 (emphasis added). This Court apparently believed that the dual notice requirement of section 318(3) applies only to "payments as they become due" and not a payment in full like the settlement in this case. Id. However, as shown below, the Utah Supreme Court reached a contrary conclusion in America First.

As noted by the supreme court, section 70A-9-318(3) clearly requires notice not only of the fact of the assignment but also that the account debtor must pay the assignee. The burden is on the assignee to provide clear and adequate notice. This requirement is supported by the same policy considerations set forth in the supreme court's earlier decision in Time Finance Corp. v. Johnson Trucking Co., 458 P.2d 873 (Utah 1969):

"The fact, however, of such substitution of a new creditor must, in order to make the debtor liable to the assignee, be brought home to the debtor with much exactness and certainty before he has paid the debt. The rule of notice to him is much more stringent than that which may defeat the title of a purchaser of a chose in action or of real estate. The latter is free to purchase or refuse to purchase as he chooses, and therefore it is his duty, before acting to

trace out any reasonable doubt and to inform himself of the true facts as soon as anything arises to put him on inquiry. But the debtor is not so situated. He must pay to his original creditor when the debt is due unless he can establish affirmatively that someone else has a better right. The notice to him therefore must be of so exact and specific a character as to convince him that he is no longer liable to such original creditor."

Id. at 876-77.

Section 318(3) protects consumers and other account debtors by allowing them to deal directly with their creditors in resolving disputes, notwithstanding the common practice of assigning accounts to remote lenders as collateral for accounts and inventory financing. A typical example of such a case is as follows:

John Smith purchased a car from Uptown Used Cars and arranged for financing at the dealership. At the time of the purchase, John received written notice that Uptown Used Cars assigns its accounts to Friendly Finance. The notice did not indicate that John should make payments to Friendly Finance.

A few months later, John decided to sell his car to his neighbor and called Uptown Used Cars for the payoff amount. Uptown Used Cars provided this information, and John sent a check to Uptown for the entire amount.

Thereafter, Uptown Used Cars went out of business without paying Friendly Finance. Friendly Finance then sued John for the full payoff amount, arguing that John knew that the account had been assigned and was therefore prohibited from paying the account in full to Uptown Used Cars. Friendly Finance acknowledged that John was authorized to make his regular monthly payments to Uptown Used Cars as they became due, but it asserted that the notice of assignment prohibited John from paying the account in full to Uptown Used Cars without the permission of Friendly Finance.

Under the prior ruling of this Court, John would have no protection under section 318(3) because he did not make "payments

as they became due" to Uptown Used Cars but instead resolved the debt in its entirety despite knowledge of the assignment. However, the supreme court correctly recognized in America First that the protections of section 318(3) are not so narrow and that the words "as they become due" should not be inserted into section 318(3).

In America First, America First Credit Union ("America First") made three loans to a food service company called Renaissance. 930 P.2d at 1200. As security for these loans, Renaissance assigned to America First a savings certificate it had with First Security Bank of Utah, N.A. ("First Security"). Id. First Security was given notice of the assignment and acted on this assignment by placing a "flag" or "block" on the account in its computer system. Id.

When its savings certificate expired, Renaissance represented to First Security that the assignment to America First had been released. Id. First Security then paid Renaissance the entire amount of the certificate. Id. America First later sued First Security for payment of the certificate. Id. The trial court held that First Security had recognized both that there had been an assignment and "'that payment should be made to America First'" and had flagged its computer system accordingly. Id. at 1201. Therefore, the district court entered judgment in favor of America First. Id. First Security



appealed. Id. The court of appeals concluded that "First Security had not shown the factual findings of the trial court to be clearly erroneous." Id. The supreme court then granted certiorari. Id.

In its decision, the supreme court emphasized certain portions of section 318(3) as follows:

The account debtor is authorized to pay the assignor until the account debtor receives notification that the amount due or to become due has been assigned and that payment is to be made to the assignee.

Id. (emphasis added by supreme court). The court then stated:

This statute imposes a two-pronged notice requirement. First, notice of the assignment must be given. Second, the notice must state that payments are to be made to the assignee.

Id. While the credit union in America First argued--similar to the reasoning in this Court's prior opinion--that the second prong of section 318(3) "is tailored to 'indirect collection' situations and therefore does not apply," the supreme court rejected this interpretation and applied both prongs of section 318(3) even though there had been a full payment.<sup>5</sup> Id. In doing so, it made clear that section 318(3) is not limited to cases

---

<sup>5</sup>Under the facts of America First, the supreme court ultimately found that "First Security received notice of the assignment and that payment was to be made to [America First] as required by Utah Code Ann. § 70A-9-318(3)." Id. at 1201-1202 (emphasis added). Thus, the supreme court found that the second prong of section 318(3) was satisfied.

involving the assignment of payments "as they become due," as held by this Court in its prior opinion.

The decision of the supreme court in America First is in accordance with the decisions of other jurisdictions that have decided whether section 318(3) applies only to "payments as they become due" or also to cases where debts are paid in full or extinguished. In Frankford Trust Co. v. Stainless Steel Servs., Inc., the defendant, Stainless Steel Services, entered into a lease agreement for certain equipment. 475 A.2d 147, 149 (Pa. Super. Ct. 1984). Disputes arose between the defendant and the original lessor. The parties agreed to abrogate the lease, and the original lessor released Stainless from its duties thereunder. However, the lease had already been assigned to Frankford Trust Co. The court was therefore faced with the very question that exists in this case: May a party settle an obligation with its original creditor if it has not received the dual notice required by section 318(3)? In ruling on this question the court held:

Among the defenses to the entry of judgment asserted by Stainless is the argument that the original parties had agreed to abrogate the lease agreement and to release Stainless from its duties thereunder. Such discharge of contractual obligation if agreed to by both Stainless and Commercial before notice of assignment, would establish a binding and meritorious defense against Frankford's claim as assignee. Under the Pennsylvania Uniform Commercial Code and as a settled principle of contract law an "assignor [Commercial] retains his power to discharge or modify the duty of the obligor [Stainless] . . . [until] the obligor receives notification that the right has been assigned and

that performance is to be rendered to the assignee  
[Frankford]."

Id. at 150 (brackets and ellipses in original; emphasis added).

Likewise, the court held in First Fidelity Bank v. Matthews that the original parties to an agreement were entitled to "terminate" the agreement where the dual notice required by section 318(3) had not been provided. 692 P.2d 1255, 1260 (Mont. 1984). In addition, the Ninth Circuit has held that participation in a settlement "constituted 'payment'" for purposes of section 318. Cumming v. Johnson, 616 F.2d 1069, 1073 (9th Cir. 1979). The Court of Appeals of Arizona reached the same conclusion: "Where one purports to pay an obligation prior to the time he is obligated to pay it, and the obligee receives his tender for the purpose of extinguishing all or part of debt, then there is 'payment.'" Corbett v. Corbett, 569 P.2d 292, 294 (Ariz. Ct. App. 1977). See also First Finance Co. v. Akathiotis, 249 N.E.2d 663, 665 (Ill. Ct. App. 1969) ("Defendant paid the full contract price to his seller as he was authorized to do under section 9-318 of the Code, absent notice by the assignee of the assignment and demand that payments be made to the assignee").

The cases cited above support the decision of the Utah Supreme Court in America First and demonstrate that First Security was entitled to settle its obligation with its original

creditor, Capitol, until it received notice that it was to pay Zions.<sup>6</sup>

Because the second prong of section 318(3) applies as a matter of law to cases involving the full payment of an obligation, the only remaining issue in this case is the factual question of whether First Security ever received notice that it was to pay Zions. This factual issue has been conclusively decided by both this Court and the district court. This Court stated in its prior opinion:

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