1997

# Zions First National Bank, a National Banking Association, and 4447 Associates, a Utah general partnership v. First Security Financial, a national corporation : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

### **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

This Court held in the First Appeal that Section 70A-9-318(1) applied to the facts of this case, not Section 70A-9-318(3). 4447 Associates v. First Security Financial, 889 P.2d 467, 472 (Utah Ct. App. 1995). The Court then remanded the case for “entry of an appropriate judgment in favor of 4447 Associates in accordance with this opinion.” 889 P.2d at 476. Further, the Court defined the “appropriate judgment”; the Court found that the Bank’s failure to give notice “entitles 4447 to an award of damages resulting therefrom, presumably the amount due on the account, as properly reduced in accordance with the terms of the asset purchase agreement as discussed above.” 889 P.2d at 475 (emphasis added).

On remand, the trial court properly rejected the Bank’s requests to apply the America First decision and disregard this Court’s mandate. The trial court also properly denied the Bank’s defenses which were rejected in the First Appeal or which the Bank failed to raise at trial. The trial court was required to follow the mandate of this Court’s decision in the First Appeal. Utah Copper Co v. Dist. Court., 64 P.2d 241, 250 (Utah 1937); accord Dreyer v. Bd. of Trustees, 666 P.2d 1214, 1215 (Mont. 1983)(a trial court cannot refuse to carry out the mandate of the appellate court). Accordingly, the trial court correctly entered judgment for 4447 for all amounts due under the Asset Purchase Agreement. R. 2150-52, 2357-58.

It is time that the Bank’s endless assertion of defenses to judgment are terminated. The Bank failed to assert defenses under Section 9-318(2) until after this Court’s decision in the First Appeal. The Bank cannot retry the case on remand after the mandate is issued

to the trial court to enter judgment in favor of 4447. Further, the Bank may not assert its Section 9-318(3) defense on remand or in this appeal, as it was rejected in the First Appeal. Finally, notwithstanding the Bank's attempt to characterize it otherwise, the parties' dispute arises under the terms of the Asset Purchase Agreement because 4447 was seeking recovery of amounts due thereunder.

4447 respectfully requests that this Court affirm the trial court's judgment and grant its attorney fees and costs incurred on appeal under the Asset Purchase Agreement.

## **ARGUMENT**

- I. THE BANK MAY NOT ASSERT DEFENSES UNDER SECTION 70A-9-318(2) IN THIS APPEAL BECAUSE THE TRIAL COURT FOUND THAT, THE BANK'S EVIDENCE OF ITS SECTION 9-318(2) DEFENSE WAS "INSUFFICIENT" AND THE BANK HAS NOT APPEALED THAT FINDING OR MARSHALED EVIDENCE IN SUPPORT OF THAT FINDING IN ITS INITIAL BRIEF.**
  - A. THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY FOUND THAT EVIDENCE PRESENTED BY THE BANK DID NOT PRECLUDE SUMMARY JUDGMENT AND THE BANK HAS NOT APPEALED THAT RULING.**

The Bank argues that the trial court erred in holding that the Bank and Capitol were not entitled to modify the Asset Purchase Agreement under Section 70A-9-318(2) by the Settlement Agreement. (Bank Brief at 16-18.)<sup>7</sup> The Bank raised this defense on remand

---

<sup>7</sup>The Bank presented this defense for the first time in its reply brief in support of its petition for writ of certiorari, see Addendum C, which was rejected by the Utah Supreme Court. The Bank failed to preserve this issue for appeal in the First Appeal and it cannot be raised on remand thereafter for the first time. See infra, Section I. D.; ("Furthermore, if a party fails to raise an issue and present evidence regarding the same, it has waived the right to do so." Hilton Hotel v. Industrial Comm. of Utah, 897 P.2d 352, 356 (Utah Ct.

after entry of this Court's prior decision in opposition to 4447's motion for summary judgment and failed to present evidence supporting its claims in opposition to 4447's motion for summary judgment. (R. 1871-78.)<sup>8</sup> Because the Bank raised after entry of this Court's decision in the First Appeal, this issue was not properly before the trial court and is not preserved for this appeal.

Section 70A-9-318(2) requires that "the assignee acquires corresponding rights under the modified or substituted contract."<sup>9</sup> While the Bank alleges that the Settlement Agreement modified or was in substitution of the obligations under the Asset Purchase Agreement under Section 70A-9-318(2), 4447 received no "corresponding rights under the modified or substituted contract." Instead, the Bank wrongfully sought to terminate 4447's rights, leaving 4447 with nothing. This Court observed:

---

App. 1995)(quoting Chevron U.S.A., Inc. v. State Tax Comm'n, 847 P.2d 418, 420 (Utah Ct. App.1993); Combe v. Warren's Family Drive-Inns, Inc., 680 P.2d 733, 736 (Utah 1984)(citations omitted)(emphasis added)).

<sup>8</sup>The Bank further failed to respond to 4447's Undisputed Material Facts as required by Rule 4-501(2), Utah Code of Judicial Administration. R.1869-71,1896-1897.

<sup>9</sup>Section 70A-9-318(2) provides:

So far as the right to payment or a part thereof under an assigned contract has not been fully earned by performance, and notwithstanding notification of the assignment, any modification of or substitution for the contract made in good faith and in accordance with reasonable commercial standards is effective against an assignee unless the account debtor has otherwise agreed but the assignee acquires corresponding rights under the modified or substituted contract. The assignment may provide that such modification or substitution is a breach by the assignor.

[A]ctual knowledge of the assignment's existence precludes substantial interference with the assignee's rights. Legal commentators have noted that under the UCC, an assignee's rights may be adversely affected by contract modifications made by the account debtor and the assignor, but such actions are 'unwarranted' if the assignee's rights are jeopardized by termination of the contract or similar unilateral action.

889 P.2d at 475 (emphases added). Accordingly, the Asset Purchase Agreement was not properly modified under Section 70A-9-318(2) as 4447 received no corresponding rights in the Settlement Agreement.

The trial court on remand rejected the Bank's defense under Section 9-318(2). In its order granting partial summary judgment, the trial court on remand found that the Settlement Agreement did not extinguish the Bank's obligation to 4447: "First Security's defense under Section 70A-9-318(2) is denied as the Settlement Agreement dated July 10, 1985 was more than a modification of the contract within the meaning of Section 70A-9-318(2); instead, the Settlement Agreement improperly attempted to terminate and discharge obligations owed under the Asset Purchase Agreement as found by the appellate court." R. 2152 (emphasis added). Significantly, the Bank has not cited or attached this Order, (R. 2150-54), and has not questioned the trial court's reasoning. Further, on summary judgment the Bank failed to properly controvert 4447's undisputed facts as required under Rule 4-501(2), Utah Code of Judicial Admin. (R. 1869-71, 1896-97). Accordingly, because the Bank has failed to properly cite the order at issue, it has failed to preserve its Section 9-318(2) defense on appeal and the trial court's ruling is unassailable.

**B. THE TRIAL COURT FOUND THAT THE BANK'S EVIDENCE OF A SECTION 9-318(2) DEFENSE WAS INSUFFICIENT PRIOR TO ENTRY OF JUDGMENT.**

The trial court again rejected the Bank's Section 9-318(2) argument prior to entry of judgment when the Bank again reargued that the Settlement Agreement modified and extinguished the indebtedness owed under the Asset Purchase Agreement, including interest payments. (R. 2125-26, 2179-80.) The Bank alleged that certain defenses had accrued which entitled the Bank to offset amounts owed to 4447 and to modify the obligations owed under the Asset Purchase Agreement because of the Settlement Agreement. (R. 2125-26, 2179-80.) Following careful review of the Bank's "evidence" concerning modification of the Asset Purchase Agreement, the trial court found the Bank's evidence was insufficient:

There is insufficient evidence in the record to support defendant's defenses to entry of judgment in favor of plaintiff. The inferences which defendant requests the Court to draw from the ambiguous evidence admitted at trial and now argued by defendant are insufficient to establish defendant's defenses.

(R. 2352(emphasis added).)

The Bank has not appealed this finding. It is not before this Court. See Bank Brief at 1-2. Accordingly, even if the Bank could assert defenses under Section 70A-9-318(2)(and it cannot), the unappealed trial court finding of insufficient evidence of that defense is fatal to the Bank's Section 9-318(2) challenge.

**C. THE BANK HAS WAIVED ANY SECTION 70A-9-318(2) DEFENSE BECAUSE IT WAS NOT PRESERVED AT TRIAL.**

Even if a Section 9-318(2) defense were applicable and supported by evidence (and it is not), the Bank waived it. The Bank argued on remand that Section 70A-9-318(2)



entitled the Bank and Capitol to modify the Asset Purchase Agreement and extinguish 4447's interest. (R. 1871-78.) However, the Bank may not argue new legal or factual positions on remand that were not addressed at trial:

Raising an issue not addressed by the parties is inappropriate and outside of the discretion given the governing tribunal because it encroaches upon the advocate responsibility conferred upon counsel. Furthermore, if a party fails to raise an issue and present evidence regarding the same, it has waived the right to do so.

Hilton Hotel v. Industrial Comm. of Utah, 897 P.2d 352, 356 (Utah Ct. App. 1995)(quoting Chevron U.S.A., Inc. v. State Tax Comm'n, 847 P.2d 418, 420 (Utah Ct. App.1993); Combe v. Warren's Family Drive-Inns, Inc., 680 P.2d 733, 736 (Utah 1984)(citations omitted)(emphasis added). By failing to assert its Section 70A-9-318(2) “defense” at trial, the Bank waived the argument or, alternatively, is now barred from asserting it on remand. See also Pretrial Order (omitting Section 70A-9-318(2) as a defense). (R. 675-94.)

## **II. THE BANK MAY NOT REARGUE THE SECTION 70A-9-318(3) DEFENSE PREVIOUSLY REJECTED BY THIS COURT**

### **A. THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY CONCLUDED THAT THIS COURT’S PRIOR, FINAL DECISION APPLYING SECTION 70A-9-318(1) PRECLUDES THE BANK’S SECTION 70A-9-318(3) ON REMAND.**

The Bank next incorrectly challenges the trial court’s decision to preclude the Bank’s alleged Section 70A-9-318(3) defense. (Bank Brief at 8-15.) This Court already addressed and rejected this very argument, holding that Section 70A-9-318(1) applied here. 889 P.2d at 472, n.8. The Court put it this way:

The two-pronged notice requirement mandated by Utah Code Ann. § 70A-9-318(3) (1990) is not applicable to our analysis. Section 9-318(3) sets forth the notice requirements for an assignee to receive payments directly from the account debtor. In the instant case, the question of whether Zions was entitled to receive payments from First Security as they came due does not merit consideration.

889 P.2d at 472, n.8 (emphasis added). This Court also stated:

The parties also debate the question of whether First Security ever received, beyond mere notice of the assignment, notice to make payment directly to Zions as contemplated in Utah Code Ann. § 70A-9- 318(3) (1990). It clearly did not, and we decline to address the issue further. See, e.g., State v. Carter, 776 P.2d 886, 888-89 (Utah 1989) (declining to consider issues without merit); State v. Vigil, 840 P.2d 788, 795 (Utah Ct. App.1992) (same), cert. denied, 857 P.2d 948 (Utah 1993).

*Id.* at 470, n.5. Construing section 9-318, the Court found that, in the context of an assignment, section 9-318 distinguishes between claims and defenses arising from the contract and other unrelated claims and defenses. 889 P.2d at 472. An account debtor can assert claims and defenses based on the terms of the contract whether they arise before or after notification of an assignment. *Id.* This Court then stated:

However, subsection (1)(b) limits assertion of unrelated claims and defenses to those "which accrue[ ] before the account debtor receives notification of the assignment." *Id.* § 70A-9-318(1)(b) (emphasis added). See also West One Bank v. Life Ins. Co., 887 P.2d 880, 885 n. 7 (Utah Ct. App.1994) (secured creditor need only give notice of its interest in order to have priority over later creditor's subsequent right of setoff). Subsection (1)(b) does not specify a particular form of notice, but simply precludes an account debtor from raising a claim or defense against an assignee after the account debtor is aware that the assignment exists.

...

According to the terms of section 9-318(1)(b), First Security, as an account debtor, can only succeed if its claim or defense accrued before it received notice of the assignment's existence.

889 P.2d at 472. On remand, the trial court followed this Court’s decision in the First Appeal and found, “Defendant’s defenses pursuant to Utah Code Annotated Section 70A-9-318(3) are not supported by the decision of the Court of Appeals . . .” (R. 2352 (emphasis added)). Accordingly, the trial court properly precluded the Bank from asserting defenses under Section 70A-9-318(3) pursuant to this Court’s prior decision.

**B. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY REJECTED THE BANK’S ARGUMENT UNDER AMERICA FIRST.**

The Utah Supreme Court decided America First, interpreting Section 70A-9-318(3), while this case was on remand but prior to entry of judgment. The Bank incorrectly suggests that America First governs and required the trial court to apply Section 70A-9-318(3). (Bank’s Brief at 9-15.) America First does not assist here because this Court’s ruling in the First Appeal did not involve application of Section 70A-9-318(3). 4447 Associates, 889 P.2d at 472, n.8. This Court held that Section 70A-9-318(1) applied, not Section 70A-9-318(3). 868 P.2d at 472, n.8. Construing Section 70A-9-318, the Court held that the subsections “distinguish[] between claims and defenses arising from the contract and other unrelated claims and defenses.” 889 P.2d at 472. This holding was not reversed (nor even questioned) by the America First Court; despite the Bank’s request that the Supreme Court in America First overturn this Court’s decision in the First Appeal. (R. 2007-08.) See America First, 930 P.2d at 1198-1202.

Thus, the trial court correctly ruled that America First did not apply on remand:

This Court has the authority to consider and apply the Utah Supreme Court’s decision in America First Credit Union v. First Security of Utah, No. 95074

(Utah January 21, 1997); however, the America First decision is not applicable to this action as the Court's decision interprets Utah Code Annotated Section 70A-9-318(3), not Section 70A-9-318(1).

(R. 2355 (emphasis added).) Which subsection of Section 70A-9-318 to apply here was decided in the First Appeal and is now final as law of the case and is *res judicata*.

The Bank also filed a petition for writ of certiorari to the Utah Supreme Court in the First Appeal and argued that Section 70A-9-318(3) applied to this case, not Section 9-318(1). See Addendum C at 1-4. Under law of the case principles, issues decided or which could have been decided if properly raised, cannot be raised after remand. Cf. Baker v. Lane Co., 586 P.2d 114 (Or. App. 1978); Adamson v. Traylor, 402 P.2d 384, 386 (Utah 1985); C&I Industries, Inc. v. Bailey, 669 P.2d 855, 856 (Utah 1983)("the express ruling by this Court on all issues raised by prior appeal becomes the law of the case and is binding upon the parties, the trial court, and this court."); Prudential Federal Savings & Loan Ass'n v. St. Paul Ins. Companies, 448 P.2d 724 (Utah 1968). Accordingly, under *res judicata* and law of the case doctrines, the Bank cannot again raise its Section 70A-9-318(3) defense, previously rejected by this Court. 889 P.2d at 472, n.8.

### **III. THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY AWARDED 4447 ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS AS THE PREVAILING PARTY UNDER THE ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT.**

With the Bank's liability fixed, the trial court correctly found that 4447 prevailed on disputes "arising under" the Asset Purchase Agreement, and properly awarded attorney's fees consistent with this Court's decision in the First Appeal. 889 P.2d 467, 476 (Utah Ct. App. 1995). Ignoring the foundation for this issue (the Asset Purchase Agreement), the Bank

assails the attorneys' fees award by casting the dispute with 4447 as one not "aris[ing] under" the Asset Purchase Agreement. (Bank Brief at 19.) The Bank, instead, says the dispute centers on whether the Bank "received notice of a subsequent assignment of the Asset Purchase Agreement." *Id.* Characterization, it seems, means everything.

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